SOUTHERN VILLAGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Minutes of Special Board Meeting Held January 24, 2007 in the Library, Christ United Methodist Church

Present: Board Members Nancy Morton (chair), Tony Smith (secretary), Tom Hanlon, Bob Callanan

HRW Eni Nagy

Apologies for Absence: Jeremy Purbrick

With a quorum established, the meeting was called to order at 7:05 PM.

First Item

The draft minutes of the December 13, 2006 Board of Directors meeting were reviewed. In addition, the attached e-mail sent to ex-members of the AR Feedback Committee by Jeremy Purbrick on December 15, 2006 was reviewed, as it directly relates to the details of the December 13, 2006 Board of Directors meeting. After a short debate the December 13, 2006 minutes, as corrected, were approved.

Second Item

Ms. Morton presented the attached letter from the SVHOA attorney, Hope Derby Carmichael, dated December 11, 2006. Ms. Morton explained that the letter was received after the December 13, 2006 Board of Directors meeting.

Specifically, the Ms. Carmichael's letter explains that the duly elected Directors of the Southern Village Homeowners Association have a fiduciary and legal duty to uphold the restrictive covenants for Southern Village and not to abdicate any responsibilities under the covenants that would jeopardize the right of every lot owner within Southern Village to have the covenants and restrictions upheld.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:20 PM

---- Original Message -----

From: <u>Jeremy Purbrick</u>
To: Jeremy Purbrick

Sent: Friday, December 15, 2006 2:31 PM **Subject:** Architectural Review in Southern Village

Dear Ex-feedback Committee Member:

Our homeowners association Board adopted a new architectural review document at its meeting this week. And I'm happy to report that this document bears a great deal of resemblance to the one we developed last year! Since we presented it to the Board in January 2006 it has been through extensive review and discussion within the ARB, which developed a modified version for the Board's consideration. In the past two months the Board then worked through the two versions to reconcile the differences and add its own view. The result is the SVHOA <u>Architectural Review Process & Guidelines</u> dated December 14, 2006. You will receive a copy in January, as part of the Annual General Meeting mailing.

While pleased with the outcome, I am disappointed that the Board chose not to make adoption of the new document subject to a member vote, as the committee had recommended. The consolation is that - unlike its predecessors - the 2006 document was developed by more than 120 active HOA members. Hence, it is more likely to be the true community standard we were all attempting to create.

Happy holidays.

Jeremy

P.S. What happened to the Good Neighbor Guide? Sadly, this Board was not prepared to endorse the gentle reminder of our covenant obligations. But all is not lost. Early in 2007 I intend to ask the new Board to embrace this expression of Southern Village civility.

LAW OFFICES JORDAN PRICE WALL GRAY JONES &

CARLTON

A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

POST OFFICE BOX 10669 RALEIGH, NORTH CAROLINA 27605-0669 1951 CLARK AVENUE RALEIGH, NC 27605

TELEPHONE (919) 828-2501

FACSIMILE (919) 834-8447

OF COUNSEL JOHN R. JORDAN, JR. ROBERT R. PRICE KAREN KELLY CARLTON

TO: Southern Village Homeowners Association Board of Directors

FROM: Hope Derby Carmichael

DATE: December 11, 2006

JOSEPH E. WALL

HENRY W. JONES, JR. PAUL T. FLICK

WILLIAM K. HALE JEFFREY R. ELLINGER STEPHEN R. DOLAN

BRIAN S. EDLIN JEFFREY J. GOEBEL JOSEPH E. PROPST

ROBERT L. ANGE

TERRY J. CARLTON HOPE DERBY CARMICHAEL JONATHAN P. CARR

SARA CARRIGAN MOESTA

R. FRANK GRAY

RE: Fiduciary Duties of Board Members

This will respond to the inquiry from the Board for a legal opinion concerning the legal duties of directors of the Southern Village Homeowners Association, Inc. The Bylaws of Arlen Park Association, Inc. (now Southern Village Homeowners Association, Inc.) provided, in Article VII for all powers and duties of the board of directors. Among those responsibilities is the power to exercise for the corporation all powers duties and authority vested in the Association. Article VIII of the Master Declaration for Southern Village provides that the Sub association has the right to enforce all restrictions and covenants contained in the Master Declaration.

Common law creates a fiduciary duty in duly elected members of a board of directors to carry out those responsibilities with which the membership of a corporation has entrusted its directors. Section 55A-8-30 of the North Carolina General Statutes also sets out the standards by which directors must legally conduct themselves in North Carolina, and that statute specifically references the continuing common law fiduciary duties. The duly elected directors of the Southern Village Homeowners Association have a fiduciary and legal duty to uphold the restrictive covenants for Southern Village and not to abdicate any responsibilities under the covenants that would jeopardize the right of every lot owner within Southern Village to have the covenants and restrictions upheld. This would include all responsibilities relating to architectural control.